
DICKINSON 
ALUMNUS 





Come back to CARLISLE and Buy Your 
Clothes and Furnishings at less 

than City Prices 

KRONENBERGS 
CARLISLE, PA. 

".:Che College Store for Oller 50 years" 

PROFESSION AL CARDS 
R. R. McWHINNEY GEORGE V. HOOVER 

Attorrney-at-Law 
1303 Berger Building, Pittsburgh, Pa. 

LESTER S. HECHT, '15 
Attorney-at-Law 

215 S. Broad Street, Philadelphia, Pa. 

H. L. DRESS 
Attorney-at-Law 

Steelton Trust Co. Bldg., Steelton, Pa. 

JAMES G. RATZ 
Attorney-at-Law 

201-202 Calder Bldg., Harrisburg, Pa. 

CLAYTON HOFFMAN 
Attorney-at-Law 

Geo. D. Harter Bank Bldg. 
Canton, Ohio 

Attorney-at-Law 
201-202 Calder Bldg., Harrisburg, Pa. 

C. W. SHARP, '14 LAW, 
Attorney-at-Law 

Baltimore, Md. 

FRYSINGER EV ANS 
Attorney and Coumsdlor-ai-Lau: 

322 Land Title Building, 
Philadelphia, Pa. 

ISAAC T. PARKS, JR., '97 
Attorney-at-Law 

225-232 New Amsterdam Bldg., 
Baltimore, Md. 

JOHN R. YATES, '16 
Attorney-at-Law 

818 Munsey Building, 
Washington, D. 0. 

Specializing in Federal Taxes 

A Mark of Distinction 
and Good Service The Molly Pitcher 

FORMERLY HOTEL CARLISLE 

Room with bath, single rate $2.50, $3.00 and $4.00 
Room with bath, double rate $4.50, $5.00 and $6.00 
Room without bath, single rate · · · · · · · · · $2.00 
Dining room service with moderate pnces. 
Special attention to private parties and banquets. 
Dinner music every evening, G to 8 o'clock. 

BARTRAM SHELLEY, Manager. 



~bt ~itkinson arumnus 
Published Quarterly for the Alumni of Dickinson College 

and the Dickinson School of Law 
Editor - - - - 
Associate Editor 

- Gilbert Malcolm, '15, '17L 
- Dean M. Hoffman, '02 

ADVISORY BOARD 
Term.s expire in 19"9 

Chas. K. Zug, '80 
Edwin H. Linville, '81 
Harry B. Stock, ..........• '91 
H. Walter Gill, '07 
Carlyle R. Earp, '14 

Tei·rns expire in 1930 
E. M. Biddle, Jr., '86 
Harry l. Price, .'96 
Edgar R. Heckman, .'97 
Boyd Lee Spahr, '00 
Frank E. Mas land, Jr., '18 

T'erm s expire 
Robert H. Conlyn, .. 
James Hope Caldwell, 
Frank R. Keefer, ... 
S. Walter Stauffer, 
Charles E. Wagner, 

in 1931 
'72 ·:>so 

.. .'85 
.. '12 

. : : : . .'14 

GENERAL ALUMNI ASSOCIATION 
OF DICKINSON COLLEGE 

Honorary President Lemuel T. Appold 
Pl'esident Boyd Lee Spahr 
Vice-President Edwin H. Linvi'lle 
Secretary . . S. Walter Stauffer 
Treasurer . . . . Harry B. Stock 

ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF 
DICKINSON SCHOOL OF LAW 

President Justice John W. Kephart 
First Vice-President Robert Hays Smith 
Second Vice-Pres Judge Fred B. Moser 
Sec'y-Treas Joseph P. Mc Keehan 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PAGE 
Dean Filler Chosen Eighteenth President . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
Dr. Morgan Retires as President of College . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 
Prof. M. P. Sellers Becomes Dean of College 9 
Death Takes Dean Trickett at 88 10 
Sun Shines on Alumni Day Doings 12 
Boyd Lee Spahr Head of Alumni Association . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 S 
Editorial 18 
Seven Receive Honorary Degrees 21 
Dickinsonian A Judge . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 
Law Alumni Hold Reunion 29 
Rushing Work on Alumni Gymnasium 30 
Personals 32 
Obituary 35 

Life Membership $40. May be paid in two installments of $20 
each, six months apart. 

Alumni dues $2.00 per year, inclumrtg one year's subscription to 
the magazine. All communications should be addressed to 

The Dickinson Alumnus, Denny Hall, Carlisle, Pa. 
"Entered as second-class matter May 23, 1923, at the post of/ice at 

Carlisle, Pennsylvania, urtder the Act of March 3, 1879." 



THE DICKINSON ALUMNUS 
August, 1928 

Dean Filler Chosen Eighteenth President 
D R. MERVIN GRANT FILLER, 

Dean of the Faculty, member of the 
class of 1893, was elected Eighteenth 
President of Dickinson College on 
June 30th at a meeting of the Board 
of Trustees held in Philadelphia, suc­ 
ceeding Dr. J. H. Morgan. 
President Morgan presented his re­ 

signation requesting that it be accepted 
as of July 31, 1928, to the Board of 
Trustees at its annual commencement 
meeting and the resignation was ac­ 
cepted but with the understanding that 
it take effect June 10, 1929. A com­ 
mittee was then appointed to consider 
the question of a successor and when 
the committee found itself ready to 
make recommendation President Mor­ 
gan stated he would prefer to be re­ 
lieved on the last day of July of this 
year as originally suggested. 
At a meeting of the Board of 

Trustees in Philadelphia on June 30th, 
the committee unanimously recom­ 
mended the election of Dean Mervin 
Grant Filler as President of the Col­ 
lege. The Board unanimously elected 
him. 

Dr. Filler is the first layman to be 
chosen President of the College, though 
Dr. Charles F. Himes, also a layman, 
rerved for some months as acting Presi­ 
dent. 
While Dr. Filler has a remarkable 

record as an educator and college official, 
many do not know that he solved one 
0f the big problems of the World War 
for the Y. M. C. A. Early in the 
war that organization was experiencing 
considerable difficulty in the securing of 
pass ports for its workers to Fracce. At 
one time there were more than eight 
hundred Y. M. C. A. workers on the 
organization pay rolls strander! ;n New 
York City unable to sail for Europe be- 
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cause the necessary passports were lack­ 
inig. A difficulty had arisen between 
the organization and the War Depart­ 
ment and Dr. Filler was appointed to 
the task of solving the problem. He 
was called from other Y. M. C. A. 
work which he had entered at the de­ 
claration of war in 1917 to this task, 
and he became one of the outstanding 
Y. M. C. A. officials. During the war 
and until his service closed in January 
1919, he had his office in Washington 
with a force of twenty-five workers and 
a private telephone line to New York 
for daily contacts with the headquarters 
there. During the first year of the war 
he continued to teach at the College 
until the close of the term making fre­ 
quent trips between Carlisle and Wash­ 
ington. Later he received a leave of 
absence until the close of the war. 

Besides his work as an educator, Dr. 
Filler has also been known for his acti­ 
vity in civic and church work. He is 
a member of the Rotary Club and 
served for a year as President of the 
Carlisle body. 
From 1901 to 1912 he was Dean of 

the Pennsylvania Chatauqua Summer 
School for teachers, which was one of 
the three summer schools supported by 
State funds in the days before College 
and University summer schools got 
under way. 
Dr. Filler was born 111 Boiling 

Springs on October 9, 1873, and after 
attending the grade schools there he 
entered Dickinson Preparatory School. 
He enrolled in the College in 1889, re­ 
ceiving his A. B. as valedictorian in 
1893, and his A. M. in 1895. Upon 
his graduation from the College he be­ 
came instructor in Greek and Latin in 
the Old Preparatory School and con­ 
tinued there until 1899 when he be- 
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came Professor of Latin in the College. 
He has for years' held the chair of the 
A. J. Clarke Professorship of Latin 
Language and Literature. 

In the summers of 1900 and 1901, 
Dr. Filler attended the University of 
Chicago. He studied in the University 
of Pennsylvania in 1906 while continu­ 
ing his teaching at the College and then 
put in a year of residence there in 1908. 
He received the honorary degree Litt. 
D. from Nebraska Wesleyan Univer­ 
sity in 1915. In 1916 he was teacher 
of Latin at the University of Pennsyl­ 
vania Summer School. 
Dr. Filler is a member of Phi Kappa 

Sigma Fraternity and Phi Beta Kappa. 
In College he was also a member of 

Union Philosophical Society. He is a 
member of the Masonic Fraternity, a'.1d 
of the American Philological Associa­ 
tion. 

From 1904 to 1915 Dr. Filler was 
Dean of the Freshman Class of th~ 
College. In 1914 he became Dean ° 
the C~llege ~ucceeding Dr: Morg~~ 
upon his election to the presidency a 
has served in this capacity ever smce. 

On June 12, 1895, Dr. Filler ma~ried 
Mildred E. Beitzel of Boiling Springs, 
Pennsylvania, and they hav.e . three 
children all of whom are Dickinson­ 
ians. They are Donald B. Filler, '17; 
Mildred Clare Filler, '18; and Mary 
Elizabeth Filler, '24. 

Trustees in Annual Meeting at Commencement 
WITH twenty members present, the 

Commencement meeting of the col­ 
lege trustees heard the report of Presi­ 
dent Morgan, changed the college 
calendar with respect to its opening and 
commencement, advanced tuition charges 
to $300 for men and to $700 for Metz­ 
ger residents, adopted a faculty retire­ 
ment rule, increased faculty salaries and 
elected new trustees, in addition to ac­ 
cepting the resignation of Dr. Morgan 
as President. 
The tuition increases were made in 

keeping with similar action taken by 
Pennsylvania colleges of like standing, 
the trustees coinciding with the o_pinion 
of others that no worthy person will be 

· denied a higher education solely because 
of its cost. 

Changes in the college calendar were 
made in response to a recommendation 
of the Advisory Council of the General 
Alumni Association for a later com­ 
mencement with the hope that more 
seasonable weather would be experienced, 
statistics showing a long series' of cold, 
wet first weeks of June at Car!i,;Je. 
College will open September 20, 1928 
and close June 10, 1929. 
The board also heard officially of the 

Robert E. Weaver and the Vivian 
Watkins bequests to the college, the la_t­ 
te r for the purpose of establishing in 
his name a chair of psychology. . 
Message of cheer were authorized 

sent to the sickbeds of the Rev. Dr. 
Cornelius W. Prettyman and Bishop 
Luther B. Wilson, fellow trustee. !he 
board also requested that its greetings 
be conveyed to another trustee Henry 
P. Cannon, Bridgeville, Del., through 
his son Harry L. Cannon, who was 
present as a trustee. 
To assure as far as possible a homo­ 

geneous college colony about the campus, 
the board authorized that steps be taken 
to purchase the Methodist parsonage, 
(the old Woodward house) on Hig.h 
Street adjoining the new gym. TJ:1s 
acquired and all except two properties 
in this block facing the campus will be 
owned by the college or its affiliated 
organizations. 
Three trustees were elected, all of 

them Dickinsonians: Methodist Episco­ 
pal Bishop, Earnest G. Richardson, '96, 
Philadelphia; and M. J. Haldeman, 
'03, Detroit banker and real estate man; 
H. Walter Gill, '07, Atlantic City at­ 
torney. 
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Dr. Morgan Retires as President of College c OMPLETING perhaps the most 
outstanding record of any official 

in the 145 years of Dickinson's history, 
Dr. J. H. Morgan closed his term as 
the seventeenth president of the Col­ 
lege on July 31 when he turned over 
his office to his co-worker and former 
student, Dean Mervin Grant Filler. 

On the occasion of the fiftieth anni­ 
versary of his graduation from the Col­ 
lege, Dr. Morgan presented his resigna­ 
tion at the June meeting of the Board 
of Trustees asking that he be relieved 
on July 31, 1928. The Board accepted 
his resignation to take effect June 10, 
1929 and a committee was appointed to 
consider a successor. This committee 
soon agreed upon Dr. Filler and a 
special meeting of the Board was called 
upon Dr. Morgan's request when he 
asked again to be relieved on July 31st 
of this year. Such action was taken. 

For fifty-four years, Dr. Morgan has 
been associated with the College as stu­ 
dent, professor, dean or president, and 
his life has been entwined with Dickin­ 
son and Dickinsonians. He married a 
Dickinsonian, the late Mary Curran 
Morgan, '88, and his three children are 
Dickinsonians, while his daughter Mar­ 
garet, '14 married a Dickinsonian, Rus­ 
sell McElfish, '14. His daughter, Dr. 
Julia Morgan, '11 is now enroute re­ 
turning to her post as' a Medical Mis­ 
sionary in China, while his son Hugh, 
'15, is in this country on furlough after 
some years as a missionary in China. 

Dr. Morgan has remodelled his for­ 
mer home on West Louther Street and 
he will make his abode there. 

In 1914, Dr. Morgan was named 
acting president succeeding Dr. Eugene 
Allen Noble at a time when the affairs 
of the College were so bad that the ques­ 
tion had risen as it might not be neces­ 
sary to close its doors. The enrollment 
was small, a debt of $135,000 was op­ 
pressing, the plant had been neglected 
and conditions generally were b ad. 
Through hard work, night and day, 
combined with his deep understanding 

of the whole problem and because of h.is 
great ability, Dr. Morgan was able 111 
his term to raise and maintain the en­ 
rollrnenr to the rnaximum permitted 
by the Board of Trustees to improve 
scholastic standards, to treble the fac­ 
ulty, to assure an endowment of a 
million dollars while he directed the ex­ 
penditure of several hundred thousand 
dollars on the plant and buildings, t~ 
inaugurate the building of the Alumni 
Gymnasium, in short to leave the C.ol­ 
lege at the end of his administration 
in the best condition in its long history, 
and with an outlook unequalled in all 
the years. 
ln 1914, the enrollment was 250 and 

at the opening of last year 564 students 
were enrolled. For several years past, 
there have been more than 500 students 
annually, and this might have been 
greatly increased but for the fact that 
to limit enrollment and improve stand­ 
ards a close selective system of admission 
has been in effect, so that this year, no 
student will be admitted who did not 
graduate in the upper half of his or her 
preparatory school class. 

To care for increased 'enrollment, 
the faculty of the College was trebled 
during Dr. Morgan's administration. 
An outstanding feature of the campus 
life in these years has been that the 
faculty has been happy and contented, 
following the lead of the President and 
co-laboring with him in the interests 
of the College. 
In 1914 the net productive endow­ 

ment was $201,771.51, a debt of $135,- 
785.02 standing against the total endO\".­ 
ment of $337,565.53. In 1920, Presi­ 
dent Morgan announced that this debt 
had been paid, and on the day he retired 
from office the endowment of the Col­ 
lege totaled $908, 193.43, while be­ 
quests totalling more than $200,000.00 
have been announced and which when 
paid will send the endowment total to 
more than one million one hund reel 
thousand dollars. In 1917 and 1922 
Dr. Morgan was largely responsible 
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for financial campaigns which added 
greatly. to the College resources. 
While the revenue and productive 

fun?s of the College materially grew 
durmg Dr. Morgan's term, several hun­ 
dred tho_usand dollars were spent on per­ 
m~ne;it improvements to the plant. The 
buddmgs and grounds of the College 
hav- never before been in such condi­ 
non as today. The remodelling of West 
College and the rebuilding of East Col­ 
lege were consummated during the past 
few years, :while the building of the 
new Al.umm Gymnasium, now nearing 
completion, was. planned and begun. 
In 1923,. President Morgan played a 

large part in the reorganization of the 
General Alumni Association and active­ 
ly sponsored publication of the DICKIN­ 
SON ALUMNUS. He is and has always 
been an alumni enthusiast and early in 
the associat10n program became a Life 
Member. 
Following his graduation in 1878 

!)r. Morgan taught at Pennington Sem~ 
mary until 1881, and he was principal 
of the Dickinson Preparatory School 
~rom 1882 to 1884 when he became ad­ 
junct professor of Greek of the College. 
In 1890, he became head of the de­ 
partment and held the chair until his 
election as president in 1914. He was 
dean of the College from 1903 to 1914. 
Dr. Morgan was born on a farm near 

~oncord, Del., January 21, 1857 and 
is a staunch "Son of Concord." He at­ 
tended a "little red school house" which 
prides itself on the record made by the 
men who were his schoolmates. 'They 
hold annual reunions in Concord and 
renew the days of their youth. 
~ater attending Rugby Academy, 

P~d~delphia, Dr. Morgan entered 
Dickinson in 1874. He received his A. 
B. in 1878 and A. M. in 1881. Buck­ 
nell conferred a Ph. D. upon him in 
1892. Three .institutions have granted 
him the honorary degree of LL. D., 
Gettysburg in 1916, Franklin & Mar­ 
sh.all in 1917, and the University of 
Pittsburgh in 1919. Wesleyan Uni­ 
versity conferred on him the honorary 
degree Doctor of Divinity in 1917. 

Returning to China 
Dr. Julia Morgan, '11, sailed 

on July 14 for England on her 
way to China. She plans to travel 
in the continent and to study at 
a medical college in India, where 
she will take a special course in 
tropical diseases, She has spent 
most of her furlough in study at 
the University of Pennsylvania 
and Boston University. 

Dr. Morgan was a member of the 
General Conference of the M. E. 
Church in 1916 and is Secretary of 
the Pennsylvania Anti-Saloon League. 
He is a member of the American Philo­ 
logical Association of the Phi Kappa· Psi 
Fraternity, and of Phi Beta Kappa Fra­ 
ternity. 

To Direct Law School 
Following the death of Dean William 

Trickett, announcement was made that 
a faculty committee of three would di­ 
rect the affairs of the school until a 
meeting of the Board of Incorporators 
was held when a successor would be 
named, and it was also stated that 
changes looking to strengthening the 
faculty would be made before the open­ 
ing of the next year. 
Later, the committee was appointed 

and it consists of Professors \i\'. H. 
Hitchler, Joseph P. McKeehan and 
Fred S. Reese. With Prof. Hutton, 
who also became a member of the facul- · 
ty in 1902, Prof. McKeehan is one of 
the senior members of the staff. Prof. 
Hitchler joined the faculty in 1909 and 
Prof. Reese in 1919. 
Prof. Hitchler devotes his time ex­ 

clusively as a teacher, while Prof. Mc­ 
Keehan has a large legal practice and 
Prof. Reese at the present time is Dis­ 
trict Attorney of Cumberland County. 
Prof. Reese has been secretary of the 

Law School faculty for some years. 
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Professor M. P. Sellers Becomes Dean of The College 
O NE of the first official. acts of his 

classmate Dr. ]VI. G. Filler was to 
appoint Professor Montgomery Porter 
Sellers, '93, Dean of the Faculty of the 
College to take effect August 1st. 
Dr. Sellers has been Dean of the 

Freshmen class since 1915 when he 
succeeded Dr. Filler, who then became 
Dean of the College. 
The new President and Dean are 

members of the same class in College. 
They have been co-laborers on the 
Faculty since their graduation. They 
were together as graduate students at 
the University of Chicago and they 
served together during the World War 
at the Nation's Capital. 
During the World War in the sum­ 

mer of 1918 Professor Sellers was in 
the service in the government in Wash­ 
ington in the Bureau of Efficiency as 
Special Expert in charge of reviewing 
and editing Congressional correspond­ 
ence. 
Professor Sellers was: born on August 

26, 1873 in Allegheny, Pennsylvania, 
the son of Frances Benjamin and 
Martha Porter Sellers. His mother 
was well known to a generation of 
Dickinsonians as one of the five Porter 
sisters. He graduated from the Carlisle 
High School and entered College in 
1889 receiving his Ph. B. in 1893 and 
his A M. in 1894. Upon his gradua­ 
tion from the College and until 1900 
he was adjunct Professor of English 
and German. From 1900 to 1904 he 
was Professor of English and since 1904 
he has been Professor of Rhetoric and 
the English Language. 
The new Dean will face a year of 

intensive work for he must continue for 
a time as Dean of the Freshmen class 
and to teach some additional courses 
which had been offered for the next 
year, including the courses in Victorian 
Poets, another Nineteenth Century 

DEAN M. P. SELLERS 

Prose and another Wordsworth and 
the English Romantic Movement. 
Dr. Sellers has traveled in Europe 

extensively and has been a student in 
England and in Germany. He Spent 
the summer of 1895 at Heidelburg and 
he was reader in English Literature 
and in History in the Bodleian Library, 
Oxford, England in the summers of 
1906 and ] 907. He was a student of 
Old English and a member of the 
Oxford Summer Meeting in 1907. Dr. 
Sellers is a member pf Phi Kappa Psi 
Fraternity and Phi Beta Kappa and of 
the Belles Lettres Society. He is un­ 
married. 

Dr. Sellers spends most of his vacation 
periods in Carlisle enjoying hikes about 
the country side. He is an ardent lover 
of nature and is devoted to walking, 
taking a stroll daily to some favorite spot. 
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Death Takes Dean Trickett at 88 
DEAN WILLIAM TRICKETT 

member of the class of 1868 and 
for thirty-eight years dean of the Dick­ 
inson Law School, died suddenly shortly 
after nine o'clock on the morning of 
August 1st. He was 88 years old. 

Dean Trickett contracted a form of 
influenza late in June and had been 
seriously ill for a month. He was con­ 
fined to his room in the home of Lyman 
G. Hertzler, '17, where he has lived 
for some years, with nurses in con­ 
stant attendance. Hope was abandoned 
several times during the month when 
s~ortly before his death, the Dean ral­ 
lied and it was then expected that he 
might recover. He summoned Pro­ 
fessor W. H. Bitchier and with Pro­ 
fessor Fred S. Reese, secretary of the 
faculty, the Dean carried on the selec­ 
tion of students for the corning year. 
The day before his death was one of 

~he best the Dean had had during his 
illness. He had been able to sit up for 
five hours in his room. He was' up 
and dressed the following morning when 
the nurse went downstairs to get his 
breakfast. As she returned to his room 
carrying the tray, the Dean fell across 
his bed, dead. 

News of his death, in spite of his 
many years', was a shock to all alumni 
of the school and saddened the hun­ 
dreds of men who had sat at his feet 
in law school classrooms. While vol­ 
umes could be written and hours of 
eulogistic oratory spent by any grad­ 
uate of the school with the beloved Dean 
as the subject, it was his own wish that 
no meeting of the Bar Association he 
held in his respect. 

Rev. J. W. Skillington, '08 pastor of 
the Allison M. E. Church of Carlisle, 
conducted the funeral services which 
were held from the Dean's late home 
on Friday afternoon, August 3rd. In­ 
terment was made in Ashland Cemetery. 
The following were pall-bearers: Pro­ 
fessors W. H. Hitchler, J. P. McKee­ 
han, Fred S. Reese, L. G. Lyman, A. 

-Plwto by o-u». 
DEAN WILLIAM TRICKETT, '68 

J. White Hutton and Robert L. Myers, 
Jr.; Addison M. Bowman and John D. 
Faller. 

More than 300 alumni of the school, 
now judges, congressmen, district at­ 
torneys, prominent lawyers, sta~e and 
government officials came to Carlisle for 
the funeral services. Floral tributes of 
great beauty almost filled the room and 
covered the casket in which the Dean 
lay. 

Born June 9, 1840, in Leicester, the 
capital of Leicestershire, in the hea~t 
of England, Dr. Trickett came to this 
country with his parents when he was 
two years old, the family settling lil 
Philadelphia. 

Entering the public schools, Dr. 
Trickett was zraduated in his 17th year 
from Centrat' High School, Philadel­ 
phia. When 18 years of age he be- 
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came attached to the Philadelphia Con­ 
ference of the Methodist Episcopal 
Church, and for about six years preach­ 
ed at various points in the states of 
Delaware, Maryland and Pennsylvania. 
His health failing about this time, he 
found it necessary to adopt some other 
vocation, and relinquishing preaching, 
entered upon a course in Dickinson 
College. He was graduated from this 
institution in 1868, remaining one year 
after graduation as principal of the 
perparatory school. 
In the summer of 1869 he was elected 

an assistant professor of philosophy in 
Dickinson College, a position he held 
for two years. Two years later he went 
to Europe where he remained for six­ 
teen months, traveling and studying in 
Germany, Switzerland and France. 
While in Europe he was elected a 

professor in Dickinson College, which 
position he accepted upon his return in 
1872, and filled until the fall of 1874, 
when he resigned and took up the study 
of law. 

He prepared for law at Carlisle, and 
was admitted to the Cumberland 
County bar in 187 5, and two years 
later to practice in the Supreme Court. 

Several years after entering upon the 
practice of his profession Dr. Trickett 
turned his attention to the writing of 
law books, at which he kept assiduously 
up to the time of his death. These 
books won the distinction for Dr. 
Trickett as one of the country's fore­ 
most authorities on law. 
In 1881, he produced in two volumes 

the "Law of Liens" in Pennsylvania, 
and in 1891 and additional volume in 
the same subject; in 1884, the "Law of 
Limitation" and the "Law of Assign­ 
ments:" in 1893. the "Law of Bor­ 
oughs," to which he added a supplemen­ 
tary volume in 1898: in 1894 the "Law 
of Hizhways ;" in 1900, the "Law of 
Guardians" and the "Law of Guard­ 
ians and the Law of Partition;" in 
1901, the "Law of Witnesses;" and in 
1904, the "Law of Landlord and 
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Tenant." In recent years several other 
books of note had been added to the 
distinguished list by Dr. Trickett and 
he was a frequent contributor to the 
"American Law Review," the "Dickin­ 
son Law Review," and the "Columbia 
Law Review." 

Although Dr. Trickett never sought 
public office, he was elected to a con­ 
stitutional convention which convention 
never met. In 1898, he was one of the 
Democratic nominees for S u p e r i o r 
Court judge and received 412, 580 votes 
while his colleagues on the ticket re­ 
ceived an average of 353, 117. 

Dr. Trickett's favorite studies in his 
earlier years were theology and phil­ 
osophy; in later years, law, sociology 
and politics in the Aristotelian sense. 
He was a member of the American Bar 
Association, Pennsylvania Bar Associa­ 
tion and the American Academy of 
Political and Social Science. The De­ 
Pauw University in 1890 conferred the 
degree of doctor of law upon him. 
His alma mater, Dickinson College, 

conferred the honorary degree of Doctor 
of Civil Law upon Dean Trickett on 
the occasion of his eighty-fifth birth­ 
day and upon completion of his thirty­ 
fifth year as Dean of the Law School 
on June 9, 1925. 
In 1890, Dr. Trickett was elected 

dean of the Dickinson Law. School, 
which had then just been incorporated 
to continue the work of an earlier school 
originated by John Reed, a former 
president judge of the courts of Cum­ 
berland County. While dean of the 
school hundreds of lawyers, now prac­ 
ticing all over the United States, trained 
under his guidance. 
In addititon to his duties as overseer 

of the school, Dr. Trickett even at the 
age of 80 gave lectures several hours 
daily on the law of real property, con­ 
tracts, evidence, decedents' estates and 
other topics. 

Dr. Trickett was a member of the 
American and Pennsylvania Bar As­ 
sociations, the Phi Kapa Sigma and Phi 
Upsilon fraternities. 
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Sun Shines on Alumni Day Doings 
W ITH more alumni and visitors 

present than in any recent 
year, and ideal weather until the last 
day, the 145th Commencement was 
celebrated from May 31 to June 4. For 
the first time in some years the sun 
shone throughout Alumni Day though a 
heavy rain broke the charm and inter­ 
ferred with the Commencement exercises 
on Monday. 
Alumni Day opened with meetings 

of the Phi Beta Kappa Society and the 
annual meeting of the General Alumni 
:'1-ssociation in West College. Follow­ 
mg the latter meeting, exercises were 
held marking the laying of the corner 
stone of the Alumni Gymnasium. 

L. T. Appold, '82 Honorary Presi­ 
dent of the Alumni Association presided 
at these exercises which were held in 
front of the new gymnasium on a tem­ 
porary stand erected for that purpose. 
Members of the Alumni Council had 
places on the platform. 
Mr. Appold first introduced W. W. 

Emmart of Baltimore, the architect of 
the Building and the College architect. 
He made a short address and Boyd Lee 
Spahr, '00 who had just been elected 
President of the Alumni Association 
made the principal address. 
Mr. Appold then showed to the as­ 

sembled audience the copper box which 
was later placed in the corner stone. 
Gilbert Malcolm announced the con­ 
tents of the box saying that it contained 
a copy of the Bible taken from Emory 
Chapel; the February 1927 and May 
1928 College catalogues; a copy of the 
Brochure; a copy of a pamphlet issued 
in the campaign for funds for the build­ 
ing; copies of the DICKINSON ALUM­ 
NUS; the DrcKINSONIAN; the Carlisle 
Sentinel; the Harrisburg Patriot. and 
the Philadelphia Public Ledger, and a 
copy of the catalogue of Living Alumni, 
published in May 1925. 

Departing from the announced plan 
and the custom of the years, the Alumni 
Luncheon was held in the Armory and 

not in the Gymnasium. The building 
proved ample and all of those pres·ent 
were comfortably seated. 

President Morgan presided at the 
luncheon, and after speeches fron; rep­ 
resentatives of the various classes in re­ 
union, introduced Dr. Leo Johnston, son 
of the former President Johnston, who 
made a short address and later Dr. 
George Edward Reed, who was ei:­ 
thusiastically welcomed by the alumni. 
The following made speeches represent­ 
ing their classes: C. W. Hillman'. '_73; 
for '76-86, George C. Stull; William 
D. Boyer, '88; Hon. J. Banks Kurtz, 
'93; Rev C. Oscar Ford, '98; Rev. W. 
Gibbs McKenney, '03; Judge Her~ert 
Cochrane, '08 ; J. Wesley Potter, 13 ; 
Rev. John M. Pearson, '18; and Rev. 
R. R. Lehman, '23. 

Fellowing the Alumni Luncheon the 
alumni formed on the campus for the 
annual Alumni Parade led by the Col­ 
lege band. George C. Stull, '82 acted 
as Grand Marshall, while Edwin H. 
Linville, '81, again headed the paraders 
in his Japanese regalia. The showmg 
of the classes in costume was a bit dis­ 
appointing and alumni officials urged 
greater preparation for next year's 
event, but many class costumes were 
seen in parade. 
The class of 1898 bore a banner 

"Thirty Years Young" and again car­ 
ried their red and white umbrellas. 
They also had a class headband on their 
hats. - Members of the class of 1908 
wore white hats bearing the class num­ 
erals, while the class of 1913 and 1915 
appeared in their reunion costumes. The 
class of 1928 wore the traditional baby 
caps and bibs. 
The parade went to the Square and 

then back to Biddle Field to watch the 
baseball game won by Gettysburg Col­ 
lege. 
After the fraternity banquets, the 

Alumni Sing was held on the Old Stone 
Steps and movies of the last Commence­ 
ment shown. 
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GYMNASIUM CORNER-STONE LAYING EXERCISES 

roll and Edwin H- Linville, Vice-P.resi­ 
dent of the General Alumni Association 
delivered the charge to the graduates. 

Boyd Lee Spahr, President of the General Alumni Association, speaking at the exercises marking the laying 
of the corner~stone of The Alumni Gymnasium 

The Rev. James Moffatt of Union 
Theological Seminary, New York City, 
well known scholar preached the Bac­ 
calaureate sermon. 

Due to the heavy rain it was im­ 
possible to go through with the sched­ 
uled Academic Procession on Monday 
morning and the Commencement exer­ 
cises alone were held in Bosler Hall. 
Dr. John James Tigert, United States 
Commissioner of Education made the 
address when one hundred and seventy­ 
seven graduates received diplomas. The 
College granted eighty-five degrees and 
the Law School conferred ninety-two 
degrees. 
The Induction of the Senior class 

was held this year on Class Day instead 
of on Alumni Day and the exercises 
took place at the Flag pole on the cam­ 
pus. President Morgan read the class 

Fifteenth Reunion for '13 
The class of 1913 held its fifteenth 

reunion at Commencement and in addi­ 
tion to participating in all of the events 
of the program, held a business meeting. 
The Secretary of the class, Mrs. C. C. 
Bramble, states that this meeting was 
an executive session from which no mat­ 
ter for publication could be issued. 
J. W. Potter represented the class at 

the Alumni Luncheon. 
Those present at the reunion were as 

follows: A. B. Goudie, Carl Hartzell, 
John V_ Mcintire, Harry McKeown, 
F. Neff Stroup, James Hargis, Ed­ 
ward Whistler, Elizabeth M. Garner, 
Julie D. Prince and John W. Potter. 
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Boyd Lee Spahr Head of Alumni Association 
BOYD LEE SPAHR, 1900, of Phila- 

delphia, was elected President of the 
General Alumni Association for 1928- 
29 at the meeting of the Alumni Council 
following the annual meeting of the 
Association on the morning of Alumni 
Day. Edwin H. Linville, '81 of New 
York was re-elected Vice-President. S. 
Walter Stauffer, '12 of York, Pa. was 
elected Secretary and Rev. Harry B. 
Stock, D. D., '91 of Carlisle was elected 
Treasurer. 

Mr. Spahr served as a member of 
the first Alumni Council when the 
Alumni Association was re-organized 
at a meeting held at Harrisburg in 
November, 1923. He was one of those 
whose term would have expired follow­ 
ing June. He was appointed to the 
Alumni Council upon the death of Dr. 
F. F. Bond early this year. 

Mr. Stauffer becomes Secretary of 
the Association again after an absence 
from the Council of three years. He 
succeeds :Murray H. Spahr, Jr. Dr. 
Stock is the second Treasurer of the 
Association succeeding John M. Rhey 
who is no longer a member of the 
Council. 
Af the annual meeting of the Associa­ 

tion, Herbert L. Davis, Chairman of 
the Tellers in the mail election, re­ 
ported that the following had been 
elected to the Alumni Council: Robert 
H. Conlyn, '72, of Carlisle, Pa.; James 
Hope Caldwell, '80, New York City; 
General Frank R. Keefer, '85, Wash­ 
ington, D. C.; S. Walter Stauffer, '12, 
York, Pa.; and Dr. Charles E. Wagner, 
'14, of Wilmington, Delaware. 
At the meeting of the Alumni Coun­ 

cil, Judge E. M. Biddle, Jr., former 
President of the Association, reported 
that the committee he had appointed at 
the fall meeting of the Council to con­ 
sider and report on the question of 
closer relations between the Council and 

the Faculty and the undergraduates had 
been received. He suggested that the 
same be circularized among the mem­ 
bers of the Council and brought up for 
their consideration at a meeting to be 
held this fall. Announcement was made 
that the fall meeting would be held in 
Harrisburg the night previous' to the 
Gettysburg-Dickinson game. A motion 
was also adopted emoowering the execu­ 
tive in its discretion to invite officers of 
the Senior class to attend this meeting. 
Gilbert Malcolm was elected Editor 

and Dean Hoffman, Associate Editor 
of the Alumnus at the meeting of the 
Council. 
At the annual meeting of the Associa­ 

tion it was called to order by the Presi­ 
dent, Judge E. M. Biddle, Jr. The 
reports of the officers of the Association 
were made and a rising vote of thanks 
was extended upon motion to General 
Keefer to the retiring officers of the 
Council for the efficient services ren­ 
dered during their terms. 

Judge Biddle made the annual report 
of the President of the Association 
which was as follows: 
Members of the Alumni /l ss ociatio n :-s- 
In submitting my report as President of 

the General Alumni Association for the 
past year I am glad to be able to say that 
the Association has continued to prosper; 
not through any merit of the present Presi­ 
dent; but through the smooth functioning 
of the machine so well launched and di­ 
rected by Mr. Appold and through the 
strong interest of the Alumni Council and 
the membership of the Association generally. 
Two years ago there were 35 Life Mem­ 

bers of the Association; last year we could 
congratulate Mr. Appold for the increase in 
the number to 79, and while we have not 
equalled that advance; yet the increase to 
94, a gain of fifteen Life Members in the 
year, is still a respectable showing. The 
trust fund created through this Member­ 
ship, amounting now to nearly $3,800, is 
held by the Carlisle Deposit Bank & Trust 
Co., and, through changes in its investment, 
authorized _by the Alumni Council, is produc­ 
ing a larger income than ever before. 
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We should not rest satisfied with this 
success, however, and I wish to urge all 
alumni to consider, seriously, taking out a 
life membership. The larger such Member­ 
ship becomes, the firmer grows the assur­ 
ance of the continued existence and good 
work of the Association; of which we are 
now able to give an ocular demonstration. 

Since our last annual meeting work has 
been begun on the Alumni Gymnasium, 
which will stand as a memorial to the 
Alumni and will constitute their greatest 
contribution, up to this time, to the physical 
plant of the College. It is a tremendous 
undertaking, and it is no light task to 
secure the aid of all the alumni in this pro­ 
jeer and it is up to all of us to do all that 
we can in its support. It is a rea 1 privilege 
to have such an opportunity to contribute 
toward a building which has been badly 
needed for so many years and which will 
stand as a symbol of our interest in and at­ 
tachment of Old Dickinson. 
Pursuant to the recommendation of the 

Alumni Council, five numbers of THE 
DICKINSON ALUMNUS will be published this 
year. Four of these have already appeared 
and the fifth will be issued immediately 
after Commencement. 
At the last Fall meeting of the Council 

a request was submitted to the Board of 
Trustees asking for the publication of an­ 
other Catalogue of Living Alumni, and re­ 
commending that such publication be made 
triennially. 
This Association, and the Alumni Council 

suffered a severe loss in the death of Dr. 
F. F. Bond of the Class of '83. The vacancy 
on the Council was filled by the election of 
Boyd Lee Spahr of 1900, one of the original 
members of that body and a valued member 
of this Association. Dr. Bond's work for 
the '76-'86 Group has been well carried on 
by Mr. Linville. 
The annual election to the Council, by 

mail, was held in accordance with the By­ 
Laws of the Association. The nominating 
committee was composed of Merkel Landis, 
Chairman, W. C. Clarke and ]. H. Hargis. 
The tellers will hereafter report the re­ 

sult of the election. We welcome heartily 
the newly-elected members of the Council; 
but the Council will part, with regret, with 
the retiring members; Messrs. Rh ey, M. H. 
Spahr, Jr., Stuart, Boyer and Cannon. Mr. 
Rhey has been Treasurer of the Association 
since its re-organization; Mr. Spahr has 
been Secretary for the past three years; 
both offices having been filled in a manner 
not easily duplicated. 
The Alumni Council at its last Fall meet­ 

ing recommended to the Trustees that the 
college calendar be altered so that the 

academic year begin a week later with Com­ 
mencement coming correspondingly, a week 
later. It is hoped, by the change, to have 
better weather on Alumni Day than h?s 
been our fortune, or rather, misfortune, in 

recent yea rs. . d 
At the same meeting the Council adopte 

a resolution urging the Athletic Committee 
to schedule games with colleges that have 
standards of eligibility similar to ours. 
A committee was appointed to study and 

suggest methods for closer contacts between 
the Council and the Faculty and the Under­ 
graduates. This Committee has drafted a 
report on the subject which will be sub­ 
mitted to the Alumni Council at its next 
meeting. 

A number of alumni clubs have held their 
customary dinners during the past years; 
but in some instances there has appeared 
to be some dilatoriness in· making the neces­ 
sary arrangements. The staging of a local 
club dinner is no slight task; but the results 
usually more than justify the effort involved. 
They are most helpful to the college, in 
the long run and it is earnestly to be hoped 
that those who have been successful in these 
lines in the past will not grow weary in 
well-doing. 
For myself, I wish to thank, most sincerely, 

the members of the Council and of the 
Association, who by their unselfish and en­ 
thusiastic work and assistance, have made 
my term of office wholly pleasant, even 
though it has not been as profitable to the 
Association as I could wish. I can ask 
nothing better for my successor than a con­ 
tinuance of that work and assistance. 

Harrisburg Club Dinner 
Russel R. Kohr, of New Cumber­ 

land, was elected president of the 
Dickinson Club of Harrisburg, at· the 
fifteenth annual dinner of the club, held 
in the University Club on May 29. 
Other officers elected were: Vice-presi­ 
dent, Paul Rupp; secretary-treasurer, 
D. W. Suender, both of this city. 

Plans for several dinners next winter 
were touched upon at the dinner. The 
principal speaker was George Ross Hu 11. 
Others who gave short talks were Dean 
Hoffman, Carl Shelley, J. H. Reiff. 
Mr. Kohr was toastmaster. 
Gilbert Malcolm showed several reels 

of movies of alumni doings at the differ­ 
ent class reunions after the dinner. 



ALUMNI PARADE SCENES 
2. 25 Yr. Old 1903 
4. '12 Shadows '13 
6. The Babies 

1. The '98 Banner 
3. '08 in 20th Reunion 
5. '15 and '18 in Force 
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] EDITORIAL 

PRESIDENTIAL SUCCESSION 
THE resignation of Dr. James Henry Morgan, seventeenth president of Dickin- 

son, June 1 and the election by the trustees· of Dr. Mervin Grant Filler, dean 
of the faculty, as his successor, June 30, have reached most alumni through the 
daily press. The two actions unquestionably mark a new epoch in Dickinson 
history. 

Dr. Morgan's retirement came at a time when he could look with genuine 
and warranted pride upon the accomplishments of fourteen years of administra­ 
tive effort. His· presidency can well be matched with any in the history of the 
college and perhaps stands by itself in the vital relation it will ever bear to the 
maintenance of an uninterrupted existence of Dickinson. 

When he was called to the office of President in 1914, Dickinson needed an 
administrator of Dr. Morgan's type. The situation was hopeless except f?r a 
man whose love for the institution and whose recognition of its sore straights 
:would prompt him to hold back nothing of himself, his time, his energy, his talents 
111 meeting the crisis. 

Perhaps it will require his own story, free from any restraint of ~odesty, 
to save to the sons and friends of Dickinson all that was needed and given to 
revive the college and place it upon the firm foundation it occupies today. But 
there is abundant visible evidence today of what the Morgan regime has achieved. 
It is apparent in a reconstructed plant, a building program underway, an expanded 
and better paid faculty, an increased student body, a much higher scholastic stand­ 
ing and an enlarged and growing endowment fund. 

These are the monuments ta the retiring president. They are part o~ the 
record. Under the circumstances he could well afford to entrust the ship to 
younger hands and retire to a less energetic life with the knowledge that his worth 
had been recognized and his services to his alma mater demonstrated. After more 
than fifty years of intimate, contact with Dickinson as student, professor, dean 
and president, his separation probably has its regrets, but regrets only that he 
could not have done more for his beloved college. . 

To bespeak for him long years of pleasant living is to repeat the obv1~us. 
His health today gives hope that in his present place, he will have much time 
and opportunity to enjoy the rewards of his service and to find time among .ot~er 
things to write, as only he could write, little or much of the fifty years of Dickm­ 
son of which he is such a conspicuous part. 

Dr. Filler, to some Dean Filler to others "Prof." Filler becomes· the eighteenth 
president of Old Dickinson under particularly favorable conditions. His election 
by the trustees was unanimous. It is even said that no other name was given 
serious consideration by the committee which made the recommendation. Bundles 
of congratulatory messages reaching Carlisle indicate a. widespread satisfaction 
among alumni over Dr. Filler's election. 

While it may carry little or no significance, President Filler is the first lay­ 
man to head the college. All of his predecessors have been clerics. Dr. Filler, 
though a devout churchman, is an educator. He is a son of Dickinson, who as a 
student "plugged" for an education. . 

Upon his graduation he became at once a teacher, and a good one as students 
of South College or Dickinson Prep days will recall. His advancement to the 
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college faculty was natural as was his elevation to the office of dean he has now 
relinquished. 

But with all his experience and talent as a teacher, President Filler's life 
has not been cloistered. He has been about. In chatauqua work at Mt. Gretna, 
in very .extensive Y. M. C. A. work during the World War, in the men's clubs 
of_ Carlisle and in civic affairs of that borough, he not only has acquired contacts 
With the world outside "classic walls" but established an entente between town 
and gown that is profitable to both. 

:V~at. the President has in mind as to policies he still has to reveal. That 
~.~ will insist on a rigid adherence to high scholastic ideals is delightfully obvious. 
Thar he will respect the traditions of Old Dickinson is equally clear. Whatever 
h~s policies may be, so far as the President can make them, it may be assured that 
his motives will be in the interest of a better and still better Dickinson. 

It is superfluous to add that President Filler will have the support of the 
alumni and that in his efforts to make alma mater a still more virile agency in 
the development of manhood and sturdy citizenship, he will have the good wishes 
of every graduate, undergraduate and friend of the college. 

TUITION FEES RISE 
Q~DE~ students of Dickinson who recall the norr;inal. fee. charged fo1'. tuition 

111 their days may be startled by the recent trustees action mcreasing this figure 
to $300. But they need only look about them in their own world and the world 
of other colleges to recognize how logical and essential this advancement in the 
cost of education has become. 

It is the considered judgment of most persons familiar with the facts that 
the cost of education never prevented a really earnest student from acquiring it. 
~here are always ways for the industrious, capable youth to make his way in the 
high as well as the low cost college and university. To some it is unfortunate 
that so-called "cheap" education has often ensnared a good mechanic or artisan 
from his trade to become a relatively less efficient and less satisfied professional 
man. 

But that is merely an incident in the rising costs of education. The real 
reason is an economic one from which there is no escape. It is in line with the 
growing opinion that education is worth paying for. Colleges like Dickinson 
have _no option, if they are to remain solvent institutions. 

DODGING THE WEATHER 
QFFICIAL decision to open and close the college c~lenda_r a week l~te!· than 

has been the long custom is a recognition of alurnm sentiment and incidental 
evidence of the gratifyingly cooperative spirit between the college and its graduates. 

In a sense the change is prompted by a desire either to outwit the Weather 
Man or play the game with him. Ever since Commencements at Carlisle became 
the elaborate things they are, the weather has in the main been hostile. A study 
of statistics showed that were Commencement held a week later, there would have 
been sunshine instead· of rain drops. 

Obviously if statistics mean anything, the proper caper was to change Com­ 
mencement instead of trying to change the weather. It may easily be,-the cynics 
are certain of it,-that the new dispensation will continue wretched weather, but 
the betting odds favor the change, which is why the alumni asked for it. 

19 
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HONORARY DEGREE GROUP 

Front Row: John James Tigert, LL.D.1 and President Morgan; Back Row: Henry M. Lawrence, 
'01; Rev. J. Howard Ake, and Howard E. Thompson, '11, who received the deg me Doctor of Divinity 
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THE ACADEMIC PROCESSION ON BACCALAUREATE SUND·AY 
Professor G. H. Patterson and Rev. J, W. Skillington, '08, followed by President Morgan and Dr. John 

James Moffatt and the graduating class 

Seven Receive Honorary Degrees at the College 
SEVEN honorary degrees were con­ 

ferred at the 145th Commencement 
exercises on June 4. 
The honorary degree of Doctor of 

Divinity was awarded to Rev. J. 
Howard Ake, Superintendent of the 
Harrisburg District of the Methodist 
Churcl~ and also to the Rev. Henry M. 
Lawrence, 'O 1, pastor of the First 
Methodist Church of Atlantic City 
N ' 
ew Jersey and to the Rev. Howard 

E. Thompson, '11, pastor of the Central 
SMtate M. E. Church of Cumberland, 

aryland. 
The honorary degree of Doctor of 

~,~ws was conferred upon John James 
_[ igerr, United States Commissioner of 
Education, who delivered the commence­ 
n:ent address at the graduation exer­ 
cises. Doctor Morgan, in awarding 
t~e honor, stated that the degree was 
given to Doctor Tigert because of his 
'.'unselfish and untiring zeal in further­ 
ing the cause of education and educa- 

tional institutions, not only in the 
United States, but throughout the 
entire world." President Morgan re­ 
called that Doctor Tigert's father de­ 
livered the address to the graduating 
class of the college fifty years ago. 
The Rev. James Moffatt, of the 

Union Theological Seminary, New 
York City, who delivered the Bacca­ 
laureate address, and was awarded the 
honorary degree of Doctor of Laws in 
recognition of his zealous work in the 
cause of the Methodist church for his 
biblical translations which have been 
internationally recognized. 
Two degrees were awarded "in ab­ 

sentia." The degree of Doctor of 
Humane Letters was conferred upon 
the Rev. James M. Hoover in recogni­ 
tion of his work in establishing religious 
colonies and furthering the cause of 
Christianity in Borneo. 
The degree of Doctor of Literature 

was conferred upon Benjamin Gregory, 
editor of the London Methodist Times. 

21 
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Many Changes in College Faculty 
With a changed administration, there 

will be more new faces on the faculty 
when College opens September 20th 
than in many years. Several have been 
called to fill places made vacant by mem­ 
bers of the Faculty who are going else­ 
where, and there will be several addi­ 
tions to the teaching force. 
One of the first tasks which con­ 

fronted President Filler when he took 
office was to locate a man to succeed 
him. He has not yet made any an­ 
nouncement though he has said that he 
expects to fill the post temporarily. 

Announcement was made in the last 
number of the appointment of Paul H. 
Do?ney, Ph. D. and also that Mary B. 
Tainter would succeed Miss Hazel Jane 
Bullock in the Department of Romance 
Languages. 

Announcement was also made that 
:Miss. Bullock, instructor C. E. Wass, 
and instructor B. Floyd Rinker would 
not return for the next year nor would 
L. F. Bower, Young Peoples' Secre­ 
tary. S'ince then Professor Herbert 
L. Davis of the Department of Chemis­ 
try has resigned to accept a research 
post at Cornell University. 

Frank Ayers, Jr., a graduate of 
Washington College with a Master's 
Degree from the University of Chicago, 
and who has taught in Texas State, A. 
& M., will be an assistant in the Mathe­ 
matics Department. 

Benjamin Wilbur Falsom, a gradu­ 
ate of South Western College, Kansas, 
and who has been teaching in the 
Missouri Wesleyan will come to the 
College to teach Public Speaking and 
to direct debating. For the past three 
summers he has· been a graduate student 
at the University of Wisconsin Summer 
School. Jerry David Hardy, an alum­ 
nus of Davidson College, has been 
named instructor in the Department of 
~iology to assist Professor Eddy. He 
IS also a graduate of Westminster Theo­ 
logical School and he studied at Johns 
Hopkins and Woods Hole, Maine. He 

has been Professor of Biology in High 
Point College, North Carolina. 

Russell I. Thompson, '20 has been 
named assistant to Professors· Norcross 
and Carver in the Departments of Psy­ 
chology and Education. Following his 
graudation he taught at Dickinson Sem­ 
inary and the past few years has been 
doing graduate work at Yale in Educa­ 
tion and Psychology. 

Claude C. Bowman, an honor stu­ 
dent in the last graduating class has been 
appointed Assistant in the Department 
of Chemistry. 

C. R. Walter Thomas, who was 
educated at Hamburg and who has been 
a member of the faculty of the U niver­ 
sity of Pennsylvania in recent years has 
been appointed an assistant to Professor 
Prettyman in the Department of Ger­ 
man. 

'02 Holds Commencement Party 
Though no reunion had been plan­ 

ned, thirteen members of the Class of 
1902 attended Commencement, parti­ 
cipated in the "pee-rade" wearing '02 
markers in their hat-bands and attended 
a dinner at the Mollv Pitcher in the 
evening. The dinner. party numbered 
21 of the '02 family. 

Back to Carlisle were Mr. and Mrs. 
Harry L. Dress, Harrisburg; Mr. and 
Mrs. R. Max Lewis, Altoona; Mr. and 
Mrs. R. Ramey Peffer, Wilkes-Barre; 
Mr. and Mrs. Carl New and daughter 
and Mr. and Mrs. L. M. Bacon of 
Baltimore; Rev. and Mrs. William I. 
Reid, Mt. View, N. J.; Mr. and Mrs. 
M. W. Bricker, New York City; Mr. 
and Mrs. S. M. Drayer, Baltimore; 
Mr. and Mrs. Dean Hoffman, Harris­ 
burg; Rev. James Cunningham and 
daughter, Frackville; Mr. and Mrs. 
C. W. Hoover, Lemoyne; Mrs. Emma 
Reeme Appleman, College Park, Md. 
and Miss Bertha Aberle, Carlisle. 
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1908 Celebrates Twentieth Anniversary 

Twenty-six members of the class' of 
1908 returned for the twentieth re­ 
union at Commencement while the 
group totalled 32 at the class banquet. 
The first meeting of the class was 

held on Friday evening in the Head­ 
quarters in Old West. These Head­ 
quarters were supplied by the college 
a.nd the sign was displayed on the out­ 
side of that part of the building. Here 
We met each other and renewed ac­ 
quaintances. Announcements for the 
next day's activities were made as 
were also the final arrangements' for 
the banquet. 
On Saturday 1908 had about twen­ 

ty-two members in the line of parade 
foll.owing the big banner, all wearing 
white outing hats with class numerals 
upon the hatband. 

Saturday evening came the banquet 
at the Moorland Inn at 7 :00 P. M. 
Wives and husbands increased the 
n~mber of thirty-two. Under the 
direction of John Shilling, toastmaster, 
classmates spoke of activities during 
years and of reminiscences of Freshman 
days. Mrs. Henry, Herbert Cochran 
and Newell Sawyer were especially 
happy in their stories of the old days. 
Chappelle brought greetings from 
Reno and "The Great Divide " he had 
travelled the longest distance of any 
member of the class in order to be 
present. 
Greetings were received from 

Maurice Heck in Florida, the Wood­ 
wa.rds'-Hugh & Helen-and Polly 
Lembach Gill in Arizona and Laura 
Barris Ellis in Honolulu.' 

Each member of the class was very 
sure that this occasion was one of the 
bright spots of - the twenty years and 
all are determined to repeat on the 
twenty-fifth-Dickinson's Sesqui. 

Later in the evening President Coch- 

ran held a class meeting which made 
some tentative arrangements for a 
gift to the college. He appointed 
Skilhnaton Todd and Mrs. Henry as 
a committee to work out the plan, 
Skillington being Chairman. 
The following attended the reunion: 

Albert T. Steelman, Wilmington, Del.; 
Ethel Carothers Henry, Martha Furn­ 
ace, Pa.; Alice M. Clarkson, Willia.ms­ 
town, Pa.; Charles R. Todd,. Carlisle, 
Pa.; ]. W. Skillington, Carlisle, Pa.; 
N. W. Sawyer, Philadelphia, Pa.; ~· 
G. Cochran, Norfolk, Va.; Elsie 
Phillips Earley, Georgetown, Del.; B. 
F. Chappelle, Reno, Nevada. ; ] . Me1:­ 
rill Williams, Lock Haven, Pa.; Lewis 
H. Chrisman, Buckhannon, W. Va.; 
Laura Dix Shilling, Dover, Del. ; ] ohn 
Shilling, Dover, Del.; Benson B. Boss, 
Baltimore, Md.; Wm. H. Davenport, 
Baltimore, Md.; Theodore C. Jones, 
Philadelphia, Pa.; ]. ]'.rank ] ones, 
Philadelphia, Pa.; Ruth Rinker Shea.rer, 
Carlisle, Pa.; C. R. Anderso~, Carlisle, 
Pa.; Lillian Brown, Fred~nck, Md.; 
Chas. K. Stevenson, Harrisburg, Pa. ; 
Harry E. McWhinney,, Pittsburgh, Pa.; 
Dulcie Foreman, Carlisle, Pa.; Geo~ge 
G. Green, State College, P~.; . Dick 
Gilbert, Tyrone, Pa. and K1rw111 F. 
Everngarn, Denton, Md. 

'93 Holds Reunion 
The 35th reunion of the class of 

'93 was observed at a dinner held at 
the Molly Pitcher Hotel on Sund~y 
afternoon of Commencement. Predic­ 
tions then made have since been ful­ 
filled that a member of the class would 
be the next President of the College. 
The election of Mervin G. Filler has 
answered that prophecy while. it has 
been carried further in the appointment 
of Montgomery P. Sellers as Dean of 
the College. 
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Another Dickinsonian Goes on Bench 

WILLIAM G. THOMAS, a mem- 
ber of the class of '98 has been 

appointed by Governor Fishe'r as Judge 
of Carbon County succeeding the late 
Judge Laird H. Barber. He assumed 
office early in June. 
Judge Thomas spent his freshman 

and sophomore years at Dickinson 
fin~ncial circumstances compelling hi~ 
retirement. He entered in '93 in the 
classical course after a youth spent in 
coal mines' and machine shops. Despite 
obstacles, Judge Thomas as a voung 
n:an was determined to have an ~duca­ 
tion and to become a member of the 
bar. His appointment has given wide­ 
spread satisfaction throughout his 
county. 
Judge Thomas' parents, Jeremiah 

and Jane Thomas were born in Wales 
emigrating to this country in 1869 and 
settling at Drifton, Luzerne county, 
;''here he was born, November 27, 1871. 
fhe father was a miner and at the 
~ge of 13 the boy who later became a 
Judge, was working on a miniature 
locomotive in the Coxe Brothers' shop 
at Drifton. That locomotive today is 
one of the exhibits in the Coxe Institute 
at Freeland, Pa., but it does not tell 
the story of how young Thomas worked 
on it at the rate of 30 cents a day for 
a ten-hour day. 

A strike in the coal regions around 
Lansford where the Thomas family 
moved in 1884, sent the father and son 
west to a mine job in the state of Wash­ 
ington. There the two worked side 
by side until a mine fire ended opera­ 
tions and they returned home. 
The lad attended Lansford High 

School where he was graduated in 1890. 
He spent the following year at Kutz­ 
town Normal School. For two years 
he taught school at Lansford. Mean­ 
while he spent his vacations at hard 
grueling labor, twelve hours a day at 

WILLIAM G. THOMAS, '98 
Judge of Carbon County, Pennsylvania 

a stone-yard in Philadelphia, the pro­ 
ceeds of which were to see him through 
Dickinson which he entered in 1893, 
his room mate being James Smitham. 
His fraternity was Theta Delta Chi. 
After leaving college he read law in 

the office of Freyman, Heydt an? 
Nothstein in Mauch Chunk using his 
evenings to teach school. A three 
months course at Banks Business Col­ 
lege, Philadelphia, equipped him as a 
stenographer and his admission to the 
Carbon County bar followed in 1897. 
He opened offices in Lansford and 
Mauch Chunk and in 1912 with 
William G. Freyman and Ben Branch 
he formed the law firm of Freyman, 
Thomas and Branch. 
Judge Thomas was married in 1895 

to Elizabeth D. Thomas. Their chil­ 
dren are Helen Thomas Zychlinski, 
of Prague, Czecho-Slovakia; Mildred 
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6homas Moore, of Buffalo; William 
J · a student at Penn State and Robert 
am~s, enrolled at Merce1:sburg. 
His town newspapers speak in high 

terms of Judg Th .. 
1 

· e omas as a citizen 
a awyer and an orator. During the 
war he 'Vas 11· , , h . f 
h 

; c rs county s c airman o 
t e Fo M" h Id ur mute Men. He has also 
M"dd the offices_ of solicitor for the 
20 I rele ~oal Field _Poor District for 

) ars ; a referee in bankruptcy, for 

15 years; county solicitor eight years; 
President of Lansford School Board, 
eight years, and State President of the 
Patriotic Order Sons of America in 
1901. He is a member of the Tamaqua 
Lodge of Elks and of the Welsh Con­ 
gregational Church. 
Judge Thomas was appointed to 

serve until 1930, and will probably 
stand as a candidate for a full term at 
the election of 1929. 

The 25th Reunion of 1903 
BY FRED E. MALICK, Secretary 
Th e 25th Re-Union of 1903 was a 

notable success. Thirty nine per cent 
of th 1· · . e 1vmg members returned to the 
:~r~ne of earlier days and kindled afresh 

err love for Alma Mater. 
H Our first concern was the campus. 
. ere 1903 has a vital and ever grow­ 
mg interest in the trees and greens 
set out according to our class project 
started in 1923. 
On all sides you were greeted with 

the expression, "Have you ever seen the 
~ampus look so beautiful?" Our plant­ 
ings are in excellent condition and due 
~o. tl;eir growth the old ivy covered 

_uild111gs have gained an enhanced set­ 
tmg. 

So pleased was 1903 with the pro­ 
gress of this project that at its business 
m . h eet111g eld after the class banquet, it 
pass~d a special vote of thanks and ap- 
pre · M h ciation to ajor R. Y. Stuart, who 
as been one of the prime movers and 

S\Jpporters of this plan. And it voted, 
also, to ask Major Stuart to submit a 
plan and estimate for continuing the 
scheme about the new gymnasium. 
Over one half the money for this ex­ 
tension is now in the treasury and it 
Was voted to continue the old plan of 
annual dues but in an altered form. 
. The chief thing on Saturday morn­ 
mg was the laying of the corner stone 
of the new gym. After that we met at 

the Alumni luncheon where Rev. W. 
Gibbs McKenny answered for 1903 
and ably brought out the attainments 
of the class for the last quarter of a 
century. 
Then came the Alumni parade and 

the baseball game. This quiet tea 
party with our ancie1~t commencement 
rival acted as a sedative to our ardent 
spirits. 

In the evening the class again met 
at a banquet at the Molly Pitcher. 
After the viands we.re disposed of, the 
real feast began. President Johnson in­ 
troduced the same and then passed 
down the class roll. Those present re­ 
sponded with regard to their experi­ 
ences in the years gone by. Letters 
were read from many unable to attend 
and information elicited with regard to 
most of the rest. 1903 basked in the 
warm glow which suffused . the scene 
and it was a joy to feel again the tug 
of the old ties. 
Those present for the re-union were 

as follows: J. E. Belt, Jessie C. Bow­ 
ers, B. W. Brown, C. E. Evans, Dr. 
E. S. Everhart, Rev. A. C. Flandreau, 
W. G. Gordon, wife and two sons; 
M. J. Haldeman, Mrs. Anna Hull 
Crostwaite, L. W. Johnson, Rev. W. 
Gibbs McKenny, wife and two sons; 
F. E. Malick and wife; C. H. Nuttle, 
Rev. Robert C. Peters and wife; R. B. 
Stauffer and. Mrs. Helen Wright 
Watson. 
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Many Dickinsonians on General Conference Roster 
DICKINSONIANS in the ministry 

~nd several laymen are prominent in 
the roster of the General Conference 
officers announced for 1928-1932 in the 
publications of the Methodist Episcopal 
Church. 

Heading the list of names of Bishops 
are Charles W. Burns and Ernest G. 
Richardson, both of the class of 1896. 
Dr. John R. Edwards, also of '96, is 
Corresponding Secretary of the Board 
of Foreign Missions. 
The Rev. John M. Arters, '99 of 

Portland, Maine, was elected Secretary 
of the General Conference to fill the 
vacancy made by the election of R. J. 
Wade to the Bishopric, and he is also 
the Boston Area Representative on the 
Book Committee. 
H. H. Nuttle, '06, is one of the lay­ 

men on the Board of Foreign Missions. 
Rev. F. R. Bayley, '00, of Baltimore, 

Maryland, is the Washington area rep­ 
resentative on the Board of Home Mis­ 
sions and Church extension. Rev. W. 
H. Ford, '94, of Philadelphia, Pa. is 
a member of the Board of Education. 

Dr. M. G. Filler, '03, is Dickinson's 
representative on the University Senate. 

Rev. Edgar R. Heckman, '97, of 
Clearfield, Pa., is a member of the Board 
of Pensions· and Relief in the· class of 
1932 and Rev. C. Oscar Ford, '98, of 
Winthrop, Mass., in the Class of 1936. 

Harry L. Price, '96, of Baltimore, 
Md., and Rev. Morris ·E. Swartz, '89, 
of Sunbury, Pa., are members of the 
Board of Temperance, Prohibition and 
Public Morals. Rev. J. E. Skillington, 
'05, of Altoona, Pa., is the Washington 
Area Representative on the World Serv­ 
ice Commission. Rev. J. W. Colona, 
'99, of Wilmington, Del., is a member 
of the Commission on Ministerial Re­ 
serve Pension Plan. 

Rev. A. E. Piper, '94, of Akron, 
Ohio is a member of the Commission 
on Revision of Ritual. He is also a 

member of the Commission on Sesqui­ 
centennial of Organization. 
Dr. John R. Edwards also serves. as 

a member of Commission on Federation 
in Korea while F. R. Bayley is a memf 
ber of the Committee on Revision ° 
Judicial Procedure. 

In Old BeIIaire 

A freak electrical storm accompanied 
by hale caused several thousand dollars 
damage in Carlisle on Sunday after­ 
noon July 22 and broke down many 

' ' H le limbs of trees on the campus. a 
the size of a man's fist fell in parts of 
the town breaking many windows. A 
number of the Metzger windows were 
broken. 

At the George greenhouses on West 
Street every pane of glass was broken. 
Roofs' of bungalows at Bellaire Park 
were ruined. Two automobiles were 
crushed by falling trees on ~treets of 
the town. 

Mr. and Mrs. Dan Cooper recently 
announced the sale of the Orpheum 
Theater to Scranton interests. They 
also sold their property across High 
Street. The reported price was $200,- 
000. The Strand Theater was sold a 
few weeks prior to the Mecco Realty 
Company, of Scranton, for $115,000: 
Workmen are engaged in remodellmg 

the front of the I. 0. 0. F. building 
which houses the Chocolate Shop, the 
Central Book Store and Lute Halbert's 
emporium. Another front has bee~ ~ut 
into the stores of the Bolen Building 
and High Street will present a changed 
appearance within a few weeks. 

A recent survey showed that 97 per 
cent of the Chamber of Commerce mem­ 
bership favored removal of the railroad 
tracks on High Street and the building 
of a high line along the north side of 
the borough. This would remove 
twenty-two grade crossings. 



COMMENCEMENT SCENES 

1. Gymnasium Corner-Stene Exerc ises 
3. 1918 in 10\h Reunion 
5. Grand Marshall George Stull 

2. L. T. Appold, Speaking 
4. Alumni on !he Old Stone Steps 
6. Alumni Parade on High Street 



f 
28 THE DICKINSON ALUMNUS 

"1898-Thirty Years Young" 
BY How ARD E. MosEs 

11HIRTY years ago the Class of '98 
graduated with 48 members, seven 

of whom have since died, leaving 41 
men scattered all over the United 
States with one representative in 
Canada, one on the Atlantic Seaboard 
three along the Pacific Coast and a 
single representative as far south as 
North Carolina. 
Out of this number fourteen were 

at Carlisle for the Thirtieth Reunion 
two of whom were obliged to leave 
before the Alumni Dav Parade Satur­ 
day afternoon, which. left an even 
dozen of Ninety-eighters to represent 
the class in the Alumni Day festivities. 
Five years ago the class introduced the 
red and white parasols and that custom 
was carried out this year, the men also 
wearing pink and blue hat bands, the 
class colors. 
The '98 contingent was· announced 

by a banner bearing the legend "1898- 
30 Years YOUNG." 
The class dinner was held Saturday 

evening at the Clover Tea Room, the 
occasion being honored by the presence 

I ~ 
I 11 

of some of the class members' wives and 
by Doctor George Edward Reed, ';ho 
was President during the four years 9~ 
was in college, and also by Doctor ~n98 
Mrs. Morris L. Prince, whom 
adopted many years ago. 

At the conclusion of the dinner a 
short business meeting was held, w~en 
the officers of the class since graduation, 
Ewing, President and Prince, Secretary, 
were continued in perpetuo. 

On Sunday evening, Prince enter· 
tained at dinner those of the class who 
were still in Carlisle, thus continuing 
a custom which has been observed every 
year since commencement. . 
The Ninety-eighters who rema.med 

for commencement comprised Prince, 
Ewing, Huber, Armstrong, Rice, Mc­ 
Williams, Watts, Hubler, Swartz, 
Ford, Logan, Bowman, Brown, Moses. 
The committee on arrangements for the 
Reunion were: Rice, Chairman, Prince, 
Brown, Moses. 

Rev. C. Oscar Ford spoke in behalf 
of the Class at the Alumni Luncheon 
and was warmly applauded. 

Admiral Hepburn '96 
0£ five captains appointed by the 

Navy Department to be Admirals, a 
Dickinsonian, Capt. Arthur ]. Hep­ 
burn, a member of '96, was one. The 
announcement was made late in June. 

Admiral Hepburn is a Carlisle man, 
the son of Samuel and Marie J apy 
Hepburn. He was appointed to the 
Naval Academy in 1893. After gradu­ 
ation he quickly distinguished himself 
and for his connection with submarine 
activities during the World War was 
awarded the Distinguished Service 
Medal. He has' acted as chief of the 
Na val Intelligence Bureau and during' 
the Geneva Conference was one of the 

'I 
I 

naval advisers. At the time of his re­ 
cent promotion he was chief of staff to 
Vice-Admiral L. M. Nulton, com­ 
mander of the battlefleet division. 

CARLISLE 
PREPARATORY SCHOOL 

of LAW 

Clarence D. MacGregor, A. M., LL. B. 
(DC '09, DLS '18) Principal 

Qffece: 
3 South Hanover Street, 

Carlisle. Pa. 
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Law Alumni Hold Annual Reunion 
Departing from the custom of other 

te~rs the ann~al reunion of the Law 
_c ~ol Alumni Association occupied a 

~z1lzg e day and was held on Friday June 
at the Carlisle Countrv Club.' The 

program 'opened with a golf tournament 
and was followed by the annual busi­ 
ne~s meeting and a dinner dance. 
. The Smoker which had been held 
In ' h prev10us years at Trickett Hall on 
t e first evening of the Reunion was dis­ 
bense~ with. Many of the Alumni 
rought their wives and families to at- 

tend th1"s ' · d · years reunion an rt was a 
very successful one. . 
]" 

1Addison 
M. Bowman, '06 L of Car­ 

is e was in charge of the nine hole golf 
tournament. A silver cup was awarded 
to th · . e winner and was presented dur- 
ing the dinner dance. 
All of the officers of the Association 

were re-elected at the annual business 
meeting. This was also held at the 
Country Club with Justice John W. 
Kephart, President of the Association 
presiding. 
Judge A. R. Chase of Clearfield 

County was toastmaster at the dinner 
and short addresses were made by 
several of the diners. Among those who 
spoke were Prof. Fred S. Reese and 
Prof. W. H. Hitchler, of the faculty; 
Charles C. Greer, of Johnstown; Wil­ 
liam A. Jordan, of Pittsburgh; Isaah 
Sheeline, of Altoona; John Memolo, of 
Scranton · Harvey Gross, of York; John 
M. Rhe; and J~l111 D. Faller, of Car- 
lis'le. 

Following the dinner a dance was 
held with the Black Diamond Orchestra 
of York furnishing the music. 

Awarded Prizes at Graduation Exercises 
Prizes were awarded at the annual 

commencement exercises to under­ 
graduates for excellency in scholarship, 

l
and those awarded prizes were as fol­ 
ows: 
m The Cannon prize, $25 (sophomore 
a thematics) was awarded to Russell 

I. Tritt, of Lemoyne. 
The Chi Omega Fraternity prize, 

$25 (sophomore economics) awarded 
to A. Caroline Nolen, Carlisle. 
The _Clemens prize, $25, best essay M f~re1gn missions, awarded to John 
cC_onnell, Philadelphia; honorary 

mention, Clarence F. Johnston, 
Centralia. 
The Miller prize, $25, (freshman 

declamation) awarded to Raymond 
C. Walker, Hamlin. 
Charles Mortimer Giffin prize, essay 

by senior on Biblical subject, awarded 
to W. Arthur Faus, Jersey Shore. 
The McDaniel prize, excellence in 

scholarship; freshman prize, first, $100; 
to Henry B. Suter, Baltimore, Md.; 

second $100 to T. Guy Steffan, 
Lemoyne; sophomore prize, $100 to 
Vincent A. McCrosson, Meshoppen. 
John Patton Memorial prizes; senior 

class, $25, to William C. McDermott, 
Carlisle ; junior class, $25 ; to James A. 
Strite Chambersburg; sophomore class, 
$25, ~o Willis W. Willard, Jr., Camp 
Hill· freshman class, $25, to Merle F. 
Bow:11an Harrisburg. 
The Rees prize, $25, excellence in 

English Bible, awarde~ to Willis W. 
Willard, Jr., Camp Hr_ll. . 
James Fowler Rusling prize, $50, 

for scholarship and character excel­ 
lence for four years, awarded to Ray 
mond M. Bell, Carlisle. 
The Walkley prize, $15, second 

pnze, freshman declamation contest, 
awarded to George W. Adams, Peach 
Glen. 
Angeline Blake Womer Memorial 

prize, freshman rhetoric, divided be­ 
tween T. Guy Steffan and Henry B. 
Suter. 
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Rushing Work on the Alumni Gymnasium 
While the builder's contract calls for 

completion of the Alumni Gymnasium 
on January 1st next, workmen arc 
pu.shing ahead as fast as possible and 
this date may be advanced to the mid­ 
dle of December at least. 

The building is now under roof. 
though the slate must yet be put in 
place. The concrete has been laid on 
the second floor and the forms have 
been taken down. Forms are now· be­ 
ing built for the cementing of the first 
floor which will also include setting the 
concrete for the swimming pool. This 
work will be started before the middle 
of August. 
Late in July, the scaffolding was taken 

down from the front of the building 
and the passerby now has a good sample 
of the final appearance of the structure. 
The cupola is in place and the buil d inz 
is very striking. It forms a fine counter~ 
part to Old West, and will greatly 
beautify the campus. 

"That is the best looking gymnasium 
I have ever seen on a college campus," 
was· the comment of a builder recently 
v.:ho passed through Carlisle. His spe 
cialty is engineering of gymnasia, and 
he said that he thought he had seen 
every gymnasium in this country. 
Alumni continue to send in their sub­ 

scriptions to the gymnasium building 
fund, the Treasurer of the College re­ 
ported to the June meeting of the Board 
of Trustees. Since Commencement, ad­ 
ditional subscriptions have been received 
and others are being sought. The total 
amount subscribed will not vet meet half 
the cost of the building, and unless the 
alumni respond more freely a more in­ 
tensive campaign may be necessary. To 
save the College this additional expense. 
alumni are urged to send in their sub­ 
scriptions at once. 
Ten of the eighteen home games of 

the Dickinson basketball team will be 
played in the new gymnasium during 
the corning season. Prominent in the 
list of home games will be contests with 

I 

I 

Ii 

the University of Pennsylvania, Swarth; 
more Temple Franklin and Marshall ' , 
and Gettysburg. 
The game with Penn is scheduled for 

January 1st, and will likely be the date 
set for the formal opening of the ne.w 
building. The dedication exercises will 
likely be held at Commencement nex~ 
June, when a greater number of alumm 
would be able to attend. 
The 1928-29 basketball schedule is as 

follows: 
December 8-Mont Alto, home 
December 12-Princeton, away 
January I-Penn, home 
J anuarv 5-Temple, away 
January 11-Haverford, away 
January 12-Army, away 
January 19-Albright, home 
January 25-Temple, home 
Tanuarv 30-Mt. St. Mary's, away 
Februa~y 2-Lebanon Valley, home 
February 6-Mt. St. Mary's, home 
February 9-F. and M., home 
February 13--F. and M., away 
February 16-Gettysb urg, home 
February 20-Lebanon Valley, away 
February 22-Swarthmore, home 
February 27-P. M. C., home 
March 6-Gettysburg, away 

Another Life Member ---- Since Commencement, one more 
name has been added to the grow­ 
ing list of Life Members in the 
General Alumni Association when 
John M. Rhey, '83, '96L, of 
Carlisle, turned over his check. 
Mr. Rhey served as treasurer of 
the Association from the date of 
its reorganization until last June 
when he retired from the Alumni 
Council. 

Checks of $20 covering the first 
payment, or of $40 as payment in 
full for Life Membership should 
be sent to The Dickinson Alumus, 
Denny Hall, Carlisle. 
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Large Attendance at Summer School of Religion 
. There were more than 200 registra­ 
twns for the eighth annual Summer 
School of Religious Education held at 
the. College from July 2 to 13. The 
s~ss10n was again held under the direc­ 
~n of the Boa.rd of Educ.ation .of the 
B · ~· Church 111 co-operation with the 

C
alt1more and Central Pennsylvania 
onferences. 
hMany Dickinsonians engaged in the 

sc ool as members of the faculty or as 
students. Rev. Edwin C. Keboch, di­ 
Cctor of Religious Education for the 
R~n~ral Penn~ylva~ia Conference, was 
T gistrar, while Gilbert Malcolm was 
di reasurer. Mrs. Josephine B. :Mere- 
ith supervised the housing of the air! 

stud b bo .e~ts at Metzger. and handled the 
ai dmg of the entire school in the 

gymnasium. 
Students and faculty of the school 

~sed the College dormitories and rooms 
10 town were provided for the over-A ow. 

Dr. L. G. Rohrbaugh, of the College 
faculty and Dr. Chester W. Quimby, 
professor of Bible, were members of the 
facul tv. Prof. Rohrbaugh gave a course 
in "The Teaching Work of the Church" 
and advanced courses in "The Chris­ 
tian Religion." Prof. Quimby's courses 
covered the Old and New Testaments. 

Dr. Leon C. Prince, of the faculty, 
was the chapel speaker for two services. 
These exercises were a feature of the 
school program and were held each 
morning in the Allison M. E. Church. 

Rev. Ralph Minker, '20, pastor of 
the M. E. Church at Concord, N. H., 
served as a member of the faculty and 
taught courses in the Psychology of 
Middle Adolescence and of Later Ado!- 

" escence. 
Dr. Ario Ayers Brown, President of 

the University of Chattanooga, was 
Dean of the School, while Charles F. 
Boss, Jr., of the Department of Church 
Schools, was Director of Seminars. 

Lay Lehigh Cornerstone 
A As at Dickinson, the feature of the 
lumni Day program at the Commence­ 

ment Exercises of Lehigh U niversitv in 
June Was a cornerstone laying. While 
twelve classes gathered for reunions, the 
cornerstone of the James: Ward Pack­ 
ard Laboratory of Electrical and Me­ 
chanical Engineering was laid. 

Yale Receives $1,000,000 
With 2,000 present at the annual 

alumni banquet, President Angell of 
Yale University announced that a gift 
~b $1,000,000 had been received from 
f ram E. Fitkin, of New York City, 
Or the development of the study of chil­ 
dren's diseases and child life. News­ 
papers stated that Mr. Fitkin, who is 
now a college graduate, was a former 
school teacher and clergynnn, who built 
up a fortune of $30,000,000 in fifteen 
years through public utilities operations. 
Yale granted 1,226 degrees at its 

227th Commencement Exercises. Fif­ 
teen honorary degrees were conferred 
and 476 graduate and professional school 
awards were made. --------- 

Dedicate New Building 
The Massachusetts Institute of Tech­ 

nology formally opened and dedicated 
the new Daniel Guggenheim Aeronauti­ 
cal Laboratory in June with exercises 
in which representatives of the school, 
the Army, Navy and the Department 
of Commerce took part. A number of 
the distinguished guests and speakers 
travelled by air for the ceremonies. 

Re-elected to Office 
At the annual meeting of the Dick­ 

inson Alumnae Club held in May, Mrs. 
Charles D. Liebensberger (Ethel Dea­ 
trick, '09) of Rutherford, N. J., was 
re-elected President and Mrs William 
T. Long (Mildred Masonheimer, '21) 
of Westfield, N. J., was re-elected 
Secretary-Treasurer. 
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PERSONALS 

1869 

_Dr. Wilbur F. Horn, Carlisle druggist, 
tripped a~d fell in the store late in June 
and, as tl11_s number goes to press, is still con­ 
fined to his bed. His condition, however, is 
not serious. 

1896 

Bi~l10p Ernest G. Richardson, who was 
appointed Resident Bishop of the Philadelphia 
area by the General Conference of the' M. E. 
Church, is now residing at 930 S. 48th Street 
Philadelphia, Pa. ' 

1898 

Dr. and Mrs. John Ellery, of Bristol Penn­ 
syl:'ania, have announced the engage~ent of 
their daughter, Miss A. Loise Ellery, to Mr. 
F. H. Worrell, of Chestertown, Maryland, 
an alumnus of Rutgers. Miss Ellery is a 
graduate of Goucher College and a member 
of Phi Beta Kappa fraternity. 
Howard E. Moses, of Harrisburg, was 

elected President of the Pennsylvania Sew­ 
age Works Association, in convention at 
State College, July 15. 

1901 
Rev. John C. Bieri sailed in June for 

Europe. He was accompanied by his daugh­ 
ter, Kathryne, who was on her way to India. 
where she will teach Mathematics in the 
'Woodstock School, Lancfour, India. He ac­ 
c~mpanied her as far as Egypt and is makinp 
his headquarters at Berne, Switzerland. 

1903 

Mary Grove, daughter of Elmer T. Grove. 
of Elmira, New York, has been registered 
as a student of the College for 1928-29. 

1905 
Edna Albert, Gardners, Pa., has a poem 

in the June number of "The Stratford Mag­ 
azine;" "a periodical for creative readers," 
published at Boston. "To A Tree" is the 
title. Ambrose Bierce, Horace Spencer Fiske 
and Ada Borden Stevens are among oth e r 
contributors. 
Rev. Edwin C. Keboch, director of Re­ 

ligious Education for the Central Pennsylva­ 
nia Conference, again acted as registrar of 
the Summer School of Religious Education 
conducted at the College. 

1906 
The Columbia University Press has an- 

nounced the publication of a text book by 
Dr. Herbert N. Shenton, entitled "The Prac­ 
tical Application of Sociology." 

1907 
Dr. Wilbur F. Norcross is Head of the 

Department of Psychology at the Summer 
School of Johns Hopkins University. 
Dr. L. G. Rohrbaugh, of the College Fac­ 

ulty, was a member of the faculty of the 
eighth annual Summer School of Religiom 
Education in July. 

1913 
Announcement of the engagement of Ed itl: 

Tatna l, of Harrisburg to Joseph F. Reuwer, 
'17, of Paxtang, Pen'nsylvania, both mem­ 
bers of, the William Penn High School Fac­ 
ulty, was made in May. Miss Tatnal has 
been teaching English at William Pe11n, and 
Mr. Reuwer is instructor of Dramatics there. 
Miss Clara ]. Leaman is at work in a 

Boarding School of the United Lutheran 
Church Mission in Rentichintala Guntur 
District, India. She also has cha'rge of a 
home for convert caste widows, and super­ 
vises the work of fifteen native Bible women 
Fred H. Bachman lives at Hazleton, Pa. 

and is agent for the Mechanics Insurance 
Co., of Philadelphia. He is in the Reserve 
Corps of the Army and holds a ccrnmissior' 
as Major, C. A. Railway Artillery. 

1914 
Rebecca Thompson is attending the sum­ 

mer school of Columbia University taking a 
co~irse in Primary Supervisory w'ork. She 
will teach next year near Philadelphia. 
George W. Hauck, of Mechanicsburg, in­ 

structm- at the John Harris High School, Har­ 
risburg, was married to Miss Kathryn Irene 
Daniels, daughter of Rev. Harry Daniels, '13, 
on July r orh, The bride's father a notable 
figure on Dickinson's football te arns not long 
a~o, performed the ceremony. The couple 
will reside in South Market Street Mechan- 
icsburg, Pa. ' 

1915 
Roger Todd represented the Carlisle Ro­ 

tary Club at the annual convention of the or­ 
ganization in Minneapolis, June r yth. 
David M. Wallace was chief marshal of a 

welcome-home celebration he ld at Middle­ 
town, Pa., in honor of Wilmer Stultz, trans­ 
Atl antic flier, on July 28th. 
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1917L 

Jesse Andre is Mayor of the City of North­ 
a,rnpton, Mass. After serving two years as 
c erk of ti D" · A . ie istrrct Court and two years as 

C ~sistant District Attorney and two years as 
ity Solicitor. 

1919 

St'¥: G. Kimmel, Supe rviso r of Social 
~ ies for the State of New Y 01 k was ap­ 

Pomted as I l l G ' l I f 1 a sc 10 a r to t re · eneva Sc 100 
I or . nternational Studies by the International 
~~tllut~ of Columbia University. The grant 
g es him a free trip to Europe. 

1920 
Dr R c' c · wi h · ay · rrst, who has been connected 

hit b the Faculty of Columbia University, 
I as ~en awarded the William Bayard Fel­ 
~WS~l!p and has been granted a year's leave 
0 ·t se~ce to take advantage of it. He· will 
sar With his wife in August for eight 
~onths' travel and study in Europe, having 
e~n elected from a list of twenty candidates. 

C elph Minker, pastor of the· M. E. Church, 
b oncord, New Hampshire, was again a mern­ 
Rer. 0! the faculty of the Summer School of 

I elig1ous Education conducted at the Col­ ege. 
P]ll:Iis.ses Mildred and Helen Conklin, of 

ainfieia, N. J., expect to travel abroad this 
summer s di f l . . . 
S . , . pen mg most o tnerr time m 
pam; 

1923 

p M?rris E .. Swartz, Jr., recently resigned as 
ublic1ty Director of the Harrisburg Wel­ 

fare Federation to become affiliated with the 
staff of the Associated Press. 

1924 

Albert M. Witwer Jr graduated from 
'.he Bosto.n School of 'The~logy in June and 
is preaching in the Philadelphia Conference 
now b · ' Ch . emg .located .at Hancock Street M. E. 
J uich, Philadelphia. He was married on 
Rune 21 to Miss Ruth Buchanon, of W. 
S ohxbury, Mass., a graduate of Sargeant 

_c ool, Boston, in the Park Street Congrega- 
~onaJ Church. The father of the groom, the 
F~v. Albert M. Witwer, 'oo, a pastor of the 
·hirst M. E. Church, Lancaster, assisted in 
t e ceremony. 
Dr. Samuel B. Fluke, who recently gradu­ 

ated from the Medical School of the Uni­ 
versity of Pennsylvania, is serving his in­ 
terneship at the Harrisburg Hospital. He 
assumed his duties on July r. 
. Raymond E. Hearn has been appointed Act­ 
~g Principal of the Junior High School, East 
range, New Jersey. 

Bishop Wilson Dies 

BISHOP LUTHER 8. WILSON, '75 

After a brief illness Bishop Luther 
Borton Wilson, '7 5 died at his home 
in Baltimore on the night of June 4. 
He was 72 years old. 

At the recent general conference of 
the Methodist Church in Kansas City, 
Bishop Wilson retired after twenty­ 
four years in the bishopric. 
The life of Bishop Wilson was re­ 

viewed in the May, 1928, number of 
THE DICKINSON ALUMNUS. 

Hugh K. Johnston, Head ?f tl~e Social Sci­ 
ence Department and athletic d1r~ctor of t!1e 
Red Lion High School, was rna r ried to Miss 
Daisy Grace Remsberg, of Airview, Mary­ 
land, July 28th, at the home of the bride, 
Philip H. Johnstown, '24, was best man. The 
bride is a graduate of Hood College and 
has been at the head of the Domestic Science 
Department of the Carlisle High School. · 

Virginia R. Watts has resigned as a teacher 
in the New Cumberland schools and will 
teach Latin and French in Harrisburg this 
year. 
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Baltimore Notes 
Carlyle R. Earp, Corres p ond enr, I2Q 
East Redwood Street, Ba!itmore, M'd . 
The Dickinson Club of Baltimore 

Scholarship offered again this year by 
the alumni group in Baltimore has 
been awarded to a Baltimore young 
man entering the freshman class of 
Dickinson next Fall. This year the 
award was made to Robert Allen 
Wa idne r, a member of this June's 
graduating class at the Forest Park 
High School. 
This is the second time that this 

scholarship, amounting to $350, has 
been given to a Forest Park High boy. 
The holder of last yea r's award was 
Henry Byron Suter, who lead the 
freshman class during this past year 
and won two prizes, as announced at 
Commencement, because of his scholar­ 
ship standing. 
Harry L. Price, '96, President of 

the Kiwanis Club in Baltimore spent 
June on the West Coast and while 
there attended the national annual 
convention of Kiwanis. 

Walter H. E. Scott, of Carlisle, has been 
appointed Law Librarian of the Pennsylvania 
State Library, Harrisburg, Pa. 

1925 
Mary Elizabeth Knupp, who has been in­ 

structor in French and Spanish in the East 
Stroudsburg High School, was married on 
June z.r st in St. John's Church, in Carlisle, 
to Robc:rt Moyer Hartman, an alumnus of 
Carnegie Tech. 

Elizabeth Robert Hurst, '25, and Paul Neal 
c.ollins, '25, were married on June 16, at 
Pine Grove Furnace. The bride graduated 
m June from the Philadelphia School of 
Social and Health Work, following a year's 
study on a fellowship from the Children's 
Aid Society. The bridegroom is associated 
with the Philadelphia Savings Fund Society. 
After September r st, Mr. and Mrs. Col!ins 
will be at home at 441 S. Fortieth Street. 
Philadelphia. . 

Anna M. Shellenberger, '25, and Norman 
N. Weisenfluh, '24, were married on June 16 
at Rohrerstown, Pa. They are now at home 
at 80% Analomink Street, East Stroud sburg, 
Pa. 
Rev. Walter L. Crowding was married on 

June 23 in the Stevens Memorial Church 
Harrisburg, to Miss Catherine Susan Fred-. 
erick, The bride and groom attended th­ 
session of the Dickinson Summer School in 
July. 

Anna M. Makibbin, teacher in the Camp 
Curtin Junior High School, Harrisburg,. was 
married to Russell A. Preble, of Merrimac, 
Mass., at the 5th Street M. E. Church, Har­ 
ris.burg, on June 29. The Rev. Dorsey Nd 
Mil le r '01 pastor of the church, perfo rrne 
the ce;·emo'ny. Mr. Preble is a gradu~te of 
North Eastern College, Boston, and is in the 
Engineering Department of the. Bell . Tele; 
phone Company. The couple w111 re;;ide a 
2130 N. Third Street, Harrisburg, Pa. 

1926 
McCune Bratton was married to M~ss 

Edith Bailey Wooten, of Hampton, Virginiad 
on June 30th. Mr. Bratton is connecte 
with the Kinney Shoe Company. 
Mary McDermott is spending the sumr:ier 

in work at the Episcopal Home, Shelterrng 
Arms, at Germantown. She will teach Eng­ 
lish and coach tennis and basket ball in the 
Senior High School at Ardmore next :year. 

Ma ra aret Gress sailed for Europe in June. 
She pl~nned to spend four weeks in study 
at the Sorbonne and four or five weeks JO 
travel about Europe, returning to this coun­ 
try in September. 
Ruth Anna Chambers and Ellsworth S. 

Keller, '26, who graduated from the Law 
School in June, were married on July 5th at 
the M. E. Church, Lancaster, Pa. 
Charles B. Witwer is living in Lancaster 

and is employed in the Claim Department of 
the Indemnity Insurance Company of North 
America. 
Robert DuBois Hoffsommer was married to 

Miss Sara Ingram in the Presbyterian 
Church, Paxtang, Pennsylvania, in June;. 

Fred M. Uber is instructor in Physics ~t 
the Svracus.e University Summer School this 
year. - Beginning in August, he will be· .a 
Teaching Fellow at the University of Cali­ 
fornia. His address will be Le Conte Hall, 
University of California, Berkeley. 

1926L 
The announcement of the engagement of 

W. J. Lescu re, Jr., of Harrisburg, to Miss 
Virginia Irving Spence, of College Park, 
Maryland, was announced early in Ju~e. 
Miss Spence is a graduate of the University 
of Maryland, of which her father is Dean .. 

Milford Mever successfully defended his 
Public Park Tennis Championship of the 
Philadelphia District in July. He will pla.y 
in the National Tournament in Cleveland this 
month. 

1927 

Rheta Ayle, '27, and Cecil Poticher, '26, 
were married in the Grace M. E. Church, 
Harrisburg, in the evening of June 16th. 
Dickimonians in the bridal party included 
Catherine Ober, '27, Velva Diven, '27, Frank 
Bayley, '26, and Joseph Stephens. '26. They 
now reside at Bloomfield, New Jersey. 
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th~· ~?uise. Patterson has been appointed in 
bra CuWlatn;ig Department of the Public Li­ 
the ryG, ashmgton, D. C. She is living at 

overnment Hotel. 

1928 
William c M D . uar h · c. ermott will attend a grad- 

wh e s~ 001. of Johns Hopkins University. 
hi eM le ';"ill do work in Latin, leading to 

s . asters Degree. 
Victor F B · . to Vir i . · aJZ _was m ar ried on July 23rd 

ria g Illa L. Blinn, of Carlisle. The mar- 
pa ge took place at the home of the bride's 
rents a d v . The '.11 n ernon Middleton officiated. 

wh Y wih make their home in Wilkes-Barre " ere t e b . · d , memb 11 egroom has been appointed a 
the Ht;r 

1°f 
the Faculty and athletic coach or 

1g1 School. 
James G H 1 teach E 

1: 
aggerty ms been elected to 

Scho I ng ish and Sociology in the High 
R 

0 at Hummelstown 
al h s · will P · Krouse and Frank D. Milbury 

fall. attend Drew Theological Seminary this 

Claude C. Bowman has been elected As­ 
sistant in the Department of Chemistry in the 
College. 
Martha Jane Green and Helen L. McDon­ 

nell will teach in the Carlisle High School 
this year. 
Raymond M. Bell has been awarded a 

fellowship and will teach in the Department 
of Physics at Syracuse University. 
Joseph E. Green has been matriculated at 

Johns Hopkins Medical College. 
J. T. Shuman has entered Y. M. C. A. 

work in Baltimore, Maryland. 
Pamelia McWilliams and Marv Smith will 

both teach in Chester, Pennsylvania. 
Mary Goodyear will teach at the Moravian 

Seminary, Lititz, Pa. 
Others who will teach are: Minerva 

Bernhardt, Hamburg, New Jers~y; [anet D. 
Forcey, Philipsburg, Pennsylvarna; ~loren~e 
F. Habbert, Millersburg, Pennsylvania; ~il­ 
dred F. Laird, W. Lampeter. Pennsvl_vania: 
Helen E. Hackman and Mildred E. Hull. 
Lancaster County, Pennsylvania. 

[ OB.IT'UARY 

M '69-Lewis Martin Bacon died at his home at Sparks, Baltimore County, 
d., on May 23rd and was buried on the 26th in the cemetery at Monkton, Md., 

near the scene of his early childhood. An impressive service in which the ex­ 
h~plary life of Mr. Bacon was eulogized by a number of his lifetime friends was 
e d at Bosley's M. E. Church. 

~r. Bacon practiced law for a number of years at Towson and was at 
one time the Clerk of the Court of Baltimore County at that county seat. He 
ider ':Veil-known in Methodist Episcopal Church circles in Baltimore, having been 
1 e~tified all his life with local lay movements of the Church. In two quadrennial 
sess10ns he served as a delegate to the General Conference. 
M ~r. Bacon was a director of the Towson National Bank, a r:ier:iber of the 

asome Order and a member of the Phi Kappa Psi fratermty at Dickinson. 
Mr. Bacon was popular among Dickinsonians because of his regular attend­ 

an_ce at commencements and at Baltimore alumni reunions but his greatest con­ 
~nbution to the well-being of Old Dickinson is the number of loyal alumni that 
Ce 1J3°duce~ in his own family, In addition to his brother, the Rev. '!)r. George 
J ·h aeon, 77, whose obituary appears also in this column, he sent his two sons, M' n, who died many years ago, and Lewis M. Bacon, Jr., '02, and a daughter, 

tss Anna M. Bacon, '10, to Dickinson. 

~72-Rev. Dr. Cornelius Wiltbank Prettyman died in the Carlisle Hospital 

h
on t e morning of June 29th and was buried in Camden, Delaware where he was 
orn June 26, 1844. 

b f Dr. Prettyman had been in declining health for some weeks but until just 
e ore the _end looked forward optimistically to recovery. 

He withdrew from College in 1871 to accept an appointment in the Wilming- 
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ton Conference of the M. E. Church and he served charges in that conference 
until his retirement. The College conferred the degree Doctor of Divinity upon 
him in 1897. 

Elected a trustee of the College in 1901 he had never missed the annual 
commencement meeting until he was forced by illness to refrain from attendmg 
the meeting this year. It was a great blow to him to be necessarily absent after 
a continuous attendance of 26 years. He was' missed by many at the 1\lu~m 
Luncheon and in the other gatherings where he had been accustomed to smgmg 
his old time song, "Nicodemus." 

Dr. Prettyman was the father of Prof. C. W. Prettyman of the College 
Faculty and of Virgil Prettyman, '92. He was a charter member of the A~pha 
Sigma Chapter and Beta Theta Pi Fraternity and a member of the U. P. Society. 

'77-Rev. Dr. George Cole Bacon, an authority on Methodist doctrin.e and 
a member of the Baltimore Conference of the M. E. Church since 1879, died on 
June 18th at his home at Monkton, Md., where he was born in 1854 and where 
he had lived in retirement during the last six years. 

After his graduation from Dickinson, Dr. Bacon studied law for two years 
but heeding the call of the Christian ministry, he entered upon the work of a 
country parson on Liberty Circuit in Maryland immediately. Dr. Bacon's work 
as a pastor and preacher was very effective and during his ministry he served 
such churches as Mr, Vernon, Waverly, East Baltimore Station, Jefferson Stre~t, 
Eutaw Street and Union Square in Baltimore, St. Paul's in Hagerstown, wh~le 
in Washington he was in charge of Douglas Memorial and later Wilson Memonal 
from which church he was retired in 1922. 

While he was the pastor of the important post of Union Square in Baltimore, 
Dickinson approved his position of leadership in the Church by conferring upon 
him the degree of Doctor of Divinity in 1900. From 1910 until 1916 he was 
district superintendent of the Frederick District and during this period he ?1d 
a valuable piece of work in encouraging and aiding many young and struggling 
pastors. 

Dr. Bacon was the author of a book and several articles on Methodist doc­ 
trine and some of his views are said to have influenced changes in church policy. 

The funeral service was held on June 20th in the church at Monkton, Md., 
and was presided over by the district superintendent, Rev. Clarence E. Wis:. 
A resolution commending Dr. Bacon's life was passed at a joint meeting of Balti­ 
more and Washington pastors at Laurel, Maryland, and read at the funeral by 
the Rev. Dr. E. L. Watson. Two Dickinson classmates, the Rev. Dr. J. C. 
Nicholson and the Rev. C. E. Dud rear, participated in the service of eulogy· 

'99-Warren Egbert Benscoter died suddenly at Ivyland, Pa., July 4th, 
while engaged in an Independence Day Parade which he had organized. He was 
born at Hickory Run, Pa., April 11, 1874, and prepared for college at Dickinson 
Seminary. He withdrew at the end of the sophomore year and subsequently 
entered Harvard where he received an A. B. in 1902. He was: agent for a time 
of the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company at Brooklyn, N. Y., and for some 
years he was Secretary of the Ethical Cu\ture Society in Philadelphia but at the 
time of his death he had no regular occu.pation other than occasional contributions 
to magazines. He was a member of the Phi Kappa Sigma Fraternity and the 
Union Philosophical Society. 
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